

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED UPDATED: FEBRUARY 5, 2022

## ···· ARTICLE I — PURPOSE

These Bylaws shall be considered a part of the Constitution of the UC Merced Alumni Association (hereinafter referred to as "Association") and shall outline the duties and responsibilities of the Members, Directors, Committees, and Chapters of the Association.

## ··· ARTICLE II — BOARD OF DIRECTORS

## SECTION 1 - NUMBER AND QUALIFICATIONS

The Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as "Board") shall consist of no more than twenty-six (26) Directors and no less than twelve (12) Directors, not including Ex-Officio Members and officers. The number of members may fluctuate from year to year, but there shall be vacancies available each year. The Board shall manage the property, business, and affairs of the Association. All of the elected Directors of the Board shall have reached the legal age of majority in the state of California and all shall be members of the Association as outlined in Article III of the Constitution.

### SECTION 2 — EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS

The Ex-Officio Members of the Board shall include the Chancellor of UC Merced, the Chair of the UC Merced Foundation Board, the President of the Student Alumni Association, the UC Merced Alumni Relations Director, and the Immediate Past President of the Board. Ex-Officio Members shall not be included in the terms "Director" or "Directors" as stated throughout these Bylaws unless explicitly stated otherwise. The Executive Committee may propose establishment of additional Ex-Officio Members to the Board for potential inclusion in all terms and responsibilities as enumerated throughout these Bylaws.

In alignment with California Corporation Code, Ex-Officio Members of the Board shall have explicitly limited voting eligibility. As Executive Committee Members, the Immediate Past President and Alumni Relations Director shall be granted the greatest breadth of voting eligibility, as detailed below. The Immediate Past President may be asked to refrain from voting by any Executive Committee Member in instances of direct or indirect conflict of interest. The Alumni Relations Director shall be prohibited from voting in Executive Committee elections that they directly oversee, but may still vote in ratification of the Nominating Committee Report and Nominating Committee matters as a member of this Committee. The Chancellor of UC Merced, the Chair of the UC Merced Foundation Board, and the President of the Student Alumni Association shall be prohibited from voting in all Nominating Committee matters or Executive Committee Elections. The Board may vote to prohibit any Ex-Officio Member from voting on any matter by two-thirds (2/3) majority vote.

## SECTION 3 — APPOINTMENT AND TERM OF OFFICE OF DIRECTORS

Directors will serve a term of three (3) years, except those selected to serve as Executive Officers as provided in Article IV of the Bylaws. The terms of office of Directors shall be staggered such that approximately one-third (1/3) of terms shall expire each year — allowing for vacancies to be filled each year. The term of office for the newly-selected Directors shall begin at their first meeting following their appointment. All Directors shall hold office for the term so appointed and until their successors have been selected. Newly-selected Directors shall become voting members of the Board upon selection and official appointment.

#### SECTION 4 — VACANCIES

A vacancy on the Board may be filled by a simple majority vote of the continuing Directors, provided that there are eight (8) or more such continuing Directors. If there are fewer than eight (8) continuing Directors at the time of such vacancy, the Directors shall call a Special Election of the Members of the Association for the purpose of electing persons to fill vacancies that exist on the Board to at least meet the minimum number of Directors as required by Section 1 of this Article. A vacancy may remain unfilled if eight (8) or more Directors are still serving. Each Director elected to fill a vacancy shall serve the remaining portion of the unexpired term or until their successor is selected and appointed. The filling of vacancies each year as they regularly become available is at the discretion of the Nominating Committee as delineated in these bylaws, however, the Board may limit the number of vacancies to be filled each year to ensure an opportunity for new members is available for the future.

#### SECTION 5 — REMOVAL FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Any Director who fails to attend two (2) Board Meetings, or special meetings of the Board shall receive an attendance warning from the Secretary of the Association. With an additional third meeting absence, the Executive Committee shall have the authority to remove said Director from the Board. The Executive Committee shall consider if any absence was reasonable under the circumstances, and with Executive Committee approval, the absence shall be deemed waived. The Board shall retain the authority to override the Executive Committee's removal action by an affirmative simple majority vote. This attendance policy shall reset upon reappointment or departure

from the Board. It shall be the responsibility of the Secretary of the Association to record absences and oversee enforcement. Any Director may be removed at any time with or without cause by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board.





UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED UPDATED: FEBRUARY 5, 2022

#### SECTION 6 — EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board shall have an Executive Committee consisting of the President of the Association, the Vice President of the Association, the Secretary of the Association, the Immediate Past President of the Association, and the Alumni Relations Director. The Immediate Past President and Alumni Relations Director shall serve as voting members of this committee. The Executive Committee shall be empowered to act in emergencies provided there is agreement of at least three (3) of its members.

#### SECTION 7 — MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Meetings of the Board shall be held on or near the UC Merced campus on the weekends of Homecoming (Fall) and Bobcat Day (Spring). Additional meetings of the Board shall be held at times established by the President of the Association in coordination with the Alumni Relations Director.

#### SECTION 8 — SPECIAL MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President of the Association, or any four (4) Directors, to be held at any place and designated hour with notice of the time and place of such meeting disseminated to each Director via electronic mail at least 14 days before the time of the meeting. Such notice shall state the specific purpose for the meeting. A majority of the Directors may waive the 14-day notice.

#### SECTION 9 - QUORUM

A simple majority of Directors present shall constitute quorum for the transaction of business at all meetings of the Board.

#### SECTION 10 - CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Meetings of the Board shall be presided over by the President of the Association, or if they are not present, by the Vice President of the Association or the President's designate from the Board. The Secretary of the Association, or a person designated by the Secretary, shall act as secretary of the meeting.

## ··· ARTICLE III — MEMBERS

The membership of the Association shall consist of "Members" and "Honorary Members."

#### SECTION 1 — MEMBERS

Any individual having received a conferred degree, at any level from UC Merced and former students who were regularly enrolled for at least two (2) semesters are entitled to all rights, privileges, and obligations of membership. Each member shall be entitled to one vote on all matters brought properly before the Members of the Association.

#### SECTION 2 — HONORARY MEMBERS

Honorary Members shall consist of individuals who have never attended UC Merced or have not fully met the specified requirements for Members but have been granted honorary membership for their service to the UC Merced Alumni Association. Honorary Members are not voting members of the Association.

## ··· ARTICLE IV — EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE ASSOCIATION

The Executive Officers of the Association shall include a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, and such other officers as the Bylaws shall state. The Immediate Past President and the Alumni Relations Director shall serve as Ex-Officio officers.

#### SECTION 1 - ELECTION OR APPOINTMENT

The President, Vice President, and Secretary of the Association shall be nominated from amongst the current or former members of the Board and elected as provided in Article V of these Bylaws. The Board may also appoint such other officers and agents as they may deem necessary for the transaction of the business of the Association.

#### SECTION 2 — TERMS OF OFFICE

The terms of office of Executive Officers shall be two (2) years from their selection or until their respective successors are elected, but any Executive Officer may be removed from the office by the Board with an two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of the Directors.

#### SECTION 3 — VACANCIES

A vacancy occurring prior to the expiration of the term of the President shall be filled by the Vice President of the Association. A vacancy prior to the expiration of the term of the Vice President of the Association shall be filled by a simple majority vote of the Board. Each Executive Officer elected to fill a vacancy shall serve the remaining portion of the unexpired term or until their successor is elected and appointed. The election of a member of the Board to fill the unexpired term of the Vice President of the Association shall not be deemed to create a vacancy on the Board nor affect that Director's term as a member of the Board. Vacancies in positions held vacant shall be filled as stated in Article V of the Bylaws.



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED UPDATED: FEBRUARY 5, 2022

#### SECTION 4 — DUTIES OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

#### PRESIDENT OF THE ASSOCIATION

The President shall preside over the Annual Meeting, at all meetings of the Board, and any Special Meetings of the Association. They shall work with the Alumni Relations Director to see that the program of work is carried out as approved by the Board. They shall serve as Chief Executive Officer of the Association and perform such other duties that usually pertain to the Office of the President including executing legal documents on behalf of the Association. The President shall serve as an Ex-Officio Member of all committees of the Board, and in the event of a committee's tie vote, shall serve as a voting Member of that committee for that vote. The President may appoint the Vice President of the Association or another member of the Board to act in their stead at such times as may be required, except for such action as may legally require the President to act. The President shall establish Committees of the Association and appoint members of such committees as may be required with the approval of the Board. Any Committee establishments made by the President shall be subject to ratification by the Board.

#### VICE PRESIDENT OF THE ASSOCIATION

The Vice President shall serve in the absence of the President of the Association and with the same powers and duties as the President of the Association when serving in their absence. The Vice President shall aid the President of the Association and the Alumni Relations Director in seeing that projects and initiatives are carried out as approved by the Board. The Vice President shall serve as Vice-Chair of the Nominating Committee, as enumerated in Article V of the Bylaws. The Vice President shall oversee or delegate personalized communication with individual Directors to check in on projects, promote communication, and address questions and concerns. The Vice President shall perform all duties delegated by the President of the Association.

#### SECRETARY OF THE ASSOCIATION

The Secretary shall keep a permanent and accurate record of proceedings for all Board Meetings and all Association Meetings. The Secretary shall work with the Department of Alumni Relations to distribute minutes to Directors after each Board Meeting and to the Association after each Association Meeting. The Secretary may record proceedings for any Committee Meeting that they are able to attend. The Secretary shall ensure that the Association's Constitution and Bylaws are followed throughout each Meeting and shall coordinate the drafting, discussion, and deliberation over amendment proposals to these documents. The Secretary shall perform all duties delegated by the President of the Association.

#### ALUMNI RELATIONS DIRECTOR

The Alumni Relations Director of UC Merced (or the individual holding the equivalent position within UC Merced) shall be the Chief Administrative Officer of the Association and shall be charged with the administration of the day-to-day affairs of the Association and its principal office. They shall implement Board directives in accordance with UC Merced policies and procedures, and shall support the missions and goals of the Association and the University. The Alumni Relations Director shall issue notices of all meetings of the Association and shall attend such meetings; shall prepare and keep appropriate records of all alumni of UC Merced and their predecessors; shall have and maintain custody of all equipment and properties of the Association; shall solicit, accept, deposit, and maintain custody of all contributions, grants, trusts, and gifts to the Association and its special funds; shall be responsible for the financial records of the Association, all special funds, and the system(s) for efficient financial administration; and shall perform such other duties as are incident to this office. The Alumni Relations Director shall be placed under such bond as the Board may require, and shall be required to present at each Annual Meeting for audit by the Association, a complete financial statement of the funds and property in their custody. In the event that a conflict exists between directives from the Chancellor or Vice-Chancellor(s) of UC Merced and the President and/or Board of the Association, the Alumni Relations Director shall notify the Chancellor or Vice-Chancellor(s) of UC Merced and the Association regarding their resolution of the conflict.

#### IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT

The Immediate Past President of the Association shall serve for a term concurrent with the President elected to follow them. The Immediate Past President shall serve as the Nominating Committee Chair as enumerated in Article V of these Bylaws-leading and evaluating the Board application and selection process as well as limiting the current President's influence. In addition, the Immediate Past President shall serve as an advisor and historian for the Executive Committee and Board. This role provides continuity in leadership succession and institutional memory preservation. The Immediate Past President shall serve as an ombuds-like-role for the Executive Committee, mediating disputes, disagreements, or complaints between the Executive Committee and individual Board members or the Board-at-large as needed. The Immediate Past President shall lead engagement and stewardship of past Board members-emeriti. The Immediate Past President shall perform all other duties UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA MERCEI delegated by the Board.



3



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED UPDATED: FEBRUARY 5, 2022

If the Immediate Past President abdicates this role, then these duties shall devolve on the Immediate Past Vice President or Immediate Past Secretary—the individuals whom served with the Immediate Past President when the Immediate Past President was President.

#### SECTION 5 — OTHER DUTIES

The Executive Committee shall oversee initiatives enacted by the Officers under oversight of the President of the Board. Such initiatives shall include the Committee model and structure, Chapter model and structure, and all other major initiatives as enacted within the Board.

The Executive Officers shall ensure oversight over the Committee Model and its structure. Alongside the President of the Board, who serves as Ex-officio member of all Committees, an Executive Officer shall act as a direct liaison amongst the respective Committee Chairs, the Executive Committee, and the Board. This Executive Officer shall organize periodic meetings with Committee Chairs throughout the academic year to report progress and current projects, share resources, and discuss any concerns. This Executive Officer may require Committee Chairs to attend Board Meetings as deemed appropriate for consistent Committee progress. Under this committee model, the individual committees shall not be codified within the Bylaws to preserve the fluidity of this model.

The Executive Officers shall ensure oversight over the Chapter Model and its structure. An Executive Officer shall act as a direct liaison amongst the respective Chapters, the Executive Committee, and the Board. This Executive Officer shall organize periodic meetings with Chapter leaders throughout the academic year to report progress and current projects, share resources, and discuss any concerns. This Executive Officer shall provide a status report for all Chapters to the Board at the last Board Meeting prior to the end of the fiscal year. Under this chapter model, the individual chapters shall not be codified within the Bylaws to preserve the fluidity of this model.

The Executive Officers shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to them by the Board, and the Board may delegate any of the enumerated duties to other qualified individuals.

## ··· ARTICLE V — SELECTION PROCESS FOR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

#### SECTION 1 — EXECUTIVE OFFICER SELECTION

All Directors on the Board shall each submit one (1) nomination either for themselves or for a fellow or former Director for each of the three (3) available Executive Officer positions—President, Vice President, and Secretary.

The nominations shall be collected by Alumni Relations Director, and all nominated Directors shall be notified for which office(s) they have been nominated. The nominated Directors shall then select one office for which they would like to serve and shall share a short statement on why they would like to serve in this nominated office.

The Directors will review all nominations and submit their selections to the Alumni Relations Director, who shall review, tally, and announce the selected Executive Officers more than thirty (30) days prior to the following Board Meeting to allow the newly selected Executive Officers the opportunity to prepare for their new roles.

#### SECTION 2 - NOMINATING COMMITTEE

The President of the Association shall appoint a Nominating Committee to consist of the Immediate Past President of the Association, the Vice President, two (2) current or former Directors of the Board, and the Alumni Relations Director annually at or around the Bobcat Day Board Meeting. The Immediate Past President shall serve as chairperson of the Nominating Committee. If they are unable to serve, the Vice President shall serve as the chairperson. The Immediate Past President and Alumni Relations Director shall serve as voting members of the Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee may additionally put forward a list of non-voting advisors to the Board for approval, where these non-voting advisors may aid the Nominating Committee in its deliberations for that year.

It shall be the duty of the Nominating Committee to seek out prospective nominees and compile biographies, personal statements, and any other information as directed by the Board to fill vacancies on the Board when appropriate. The Board shall approve the application and committee review guidelines prior to the opening of the application cycle for the current year.

In selecting nominees for service as Directors of the Board, it shall be the duty of the Nominating Committee to solicit names from all Members. Notice and solicitations for nominations shall also be posted on the Association website at least thirty (30) days from selection. The Nominating Committee shall establish a timeline to ensure that the notice requirements set forth in this Article will be met.



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED UPDATED: FEBRUARY 5, 2022

Members may propose candidates for Director positions provided that the name and biography of their proposed candidate is submitted in writing to the Nominating Committee by the time specified in the notice, which can be no sooner than thirty (30) days from the day of the announcement.

Any member of this committee being considered for re-appointment or appointment to any position shall recuse them self from the committee to avoid any conflict of interest.

Appointments to the Nominating Committee by the President shall be ratified by the Board. Said ratification may be conducted by electronic voting to avoid the necessity of a formal meeting.

#### SECTION 3 - REPORT OF THE NOMINATING COMMITTEE

The Nominating Committee shall review the nominations and submit its recommendations to the Board for ratification. This ratification vote shall be a vote of confidence in the adherence of the Nominating Committee to the committee review guidelines and these Bylaws. A majority affirmative vote shall confirm that these regulations were met and confirm the slate of nominees in total, where voting on individual nominee(s) shall not be cast. Any applying Director that is under consideration in the current cycle shall abstain from voting due to conflict of interest. Failure to reach a majority affirmative vote shall open consideration for additional review of the deliberation notes of the Nominating Committee for adherence and/or consideration of individual candidates for vote, under the guidance of the Executive Committee.

Ratification vote may be conducted via electronic mail or other means at the discretion of the Board Secretary, primarily to avoid the necessity of a formal meeting. Once approved by the Board, the Board shall announce the nominations to the Members by publishing them, along with a biography on each nominee, on the Association website and by electronic mail or by publication in an official Association publication.

## ··· ARTICLE VI — SELECTION PROCESS FOR ALUMNI REGENT

The University and UCMAA Board of Directors shall periodically seek highly qualified candidates to serve as the Alumni Regenton the University of California Board of Regents and concurrently as an Officer of the Alumni Association of the University of California (henceforth AAUC). Per the enumerated responsibility within Article IX, Section 9 of the California State Constitution, as upheld by the UC Board of Regents and AAUC within and beyond the respective Bylaws, the UCMAA Board shall steward the facilitation and confirmation of an Alumni Regent-designate. The UC Merced Alumni Regent-designate shall uphold the role and responsibilities within the one-year seated term required, as an integral proponent for the campus within this space.

For the purpose of this enumerated protocol, it shall be observed that as each designation cycle approaches, the currently seated Board Secretary shall put forward a technical amendment to update the specifically enumerated dates of the upcoming cycle with sufficient notice to the UCMAA Board, as denoted henceforth.

For the purposes of navigation through unforeseen circumstances, the UCMAA Executive Committee may modify the staging of the timeline below, under guidance of the administration and with announcement to the UCMAA Board of Directors and membership at-large.

#### SECTION 1 — AAUC PROTOCOL AND TIMELINE

The AAUC maintains a protocol for the designation of Alumni Regents within the UC Board of Regents on a cycling schedule. The UCMAA Board of Directors shall fulfill the designation of a UC Merced Alumni Regent for the term of **July 1**, **2022 to June 30**, **2024**. The UC Merced Alumni Regent shall concurrently serve as non-voting **Regent-designate** and as **AAUC Treasurer** from **July 1**, **2022 to June 30**, **2023**. The UC Merced Alumni Regent shall concurrently serve as voting seated **Regent** and as **AAUC Vice President** from **July 1**, **2023 to June 30**, **2024**. UC Merced shall reoccur in the designation cycling in 2028, as scheduled.

#### SECTION 2 - EXPECTATIONS, DUTIES, AND QUALIFICATIONS

UC Merced Alumni Regent candidates shall be graduates of UC Merced; have a complete understanding and appreciation of the mission of the UC Regents and UCMAA; and may not be a current UC employee. Preference shall be given to individuals who have a noteworthy history of active participation in the UCMAA and in UC Merced activities and programs.

The UCMAA Board of Directors and UC Merced at-large maintain that the Alumni Regent shall: (continued on next page)





UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED UPDATED: FEBRUARY 5, 2022

- Represent UC Merced alumni interests and UC alumni interests at-large on issues before the UC Board of Regents;
- Serve on special University-wide committees, Regents' task forces, or on Standing Committees of the Regents;
- Provide Regents meeting briefings at the quarterly AAUC and UCMAA meetings;
- Promote awareness of systemwide issues and concerns among AAUC member organizations by meeting with campus alumni associations and other campus boards;
- Represent the AAUC at Regents' functions, such as the annual Regents' Dinner to honor alumni leadership, and all official AAUC functions;
- Assume leadership role(s) as a member of the AAUC executive committee, in assisting staff to implement existing AAUC programs, develop agenda items for AAUC meetings, and develop new system-wide alumni initiatives.
- Play a key role in the biannual UC Day advocacy event in Sacramento; and
- Serve as a standing representative of the UCMAA Board of Directors, and as a limited voting ex-officio member of the UCMAA Board of Directors, participating in Board meetings and activities.

The UC Merced Alumni Regent shall recognize that the time commitment of this responsibility shall be strict and expansive. Alumni Regents shall be expected to attend all required and designated meetings of the Regents and AAUC, to include meetings of the UCMAA Board and/or Executive Committee upon request. Extensive preparation for each meeting shall be expected prior to each meeting. Candidates shall seriously consider the allotment of dedicated time to devote to this role, outside of other personal or professional obligations. Time commitments shall include but are not limited to:

- Six Regents Meetings, of three-day duration for each;
- Review of Regent Board paperwork, which may often be 500-1000 pages long;
- Meeting with campus alumni association boards, of generally one-day duration per visit, with one or two occasions annually;
- Meetings/events at the request of the Regents;
- Quarterly AAUC Meetings and Dinners, of one-day duration each, with up to four occasions annually;
- Monthly AAUC Officers' Conference Calls, of one-hour duration each;
- Yearly AAUC summer planning and orientation meetings, of one-day duration each;
- UC Day advocacy events in Sacramento, of two days in frequency every year;
- Quarterly meetings of the UCMAA Board of Directors, and meetings of the UCMAA Executive Committee upon request; and
- Major events sponsored by the UCMAA;

For contextual insight, the University of California is governed by the Board of Regents, a 26-member board that includes four Alumni Regent positions. Two of these positions are appointed each year, according to a rotation schedule approved by the AAUC, for two-year terms. Each appointee serves one year as a non-voting Regent Designate, and then one year as a voting Regent. The selected UC Merced Alumni Regent of a given cycle shall serve as:

- Alumni Regent-designate, and as AAUC Treasurer or Secretary, during the first year
- Alumni Regent, and as AAUC Vice President or President, during the second year

For contextual insight, the AAUC is comprised of alumni leaders from each UC campus. The four Alumni Regents serve as officers of the AAUC (President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer). The AAUC members include the four officers, and the following from each of the UC campuses: Alumni Association Presidents (voting), Alumni Association Executive Directors (non-voting), one staff representative (non-voting), and Executive Director of AAUC from the UCOP Alumni Relations staff (non-voting). The AAUC serves the purposes:

- To create an organization of representatives from all alumni of the University of California;
- To promote the welfare of the University of California;
- To provide for the selection of a Secretary and a Treasurer invited to attend meetings of the Board of Regents pursuant to its Bylaws and commonly referred to as "Regents-Designate;"
- To provide for the selection of a President and a Vice President to serve as the ex officio members of the Board of Regents of the University of California to represent the alumni of the University as provided in the State Constitution;
- To provide for the selection of an alumnus of the University to serve on the Governor's Advisory Committee on the selection of Regents as provided in the State Constitution;





UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED UPDATED: FEBRUARY 5, 2022

- To facilitate an exchange of ideas, experiences, and resources among constituent members; and
- To promote and conduct activities of mutual benefit to the constituent members of the University of California.

For contextual insight, each Officer role of the Alumni Regent on the AAUC leadership shall lead where:

- The President and Vice President preside jointly at all AAUC meetings of the members. Special meetings of member associations may be called and held at such time and place as the President, with the approval of the Vice President, Secretary, or Treasurer, may from time to time specify in writing.
- The President and the Vice President shall hold the ex officio seats upon the Board of Regents of the University of California. The Secretary and Treasurer shall attend meetings of the Board of Regents as Regent-designate.
- During the fiscal year following their terms of office, the Immediate Past President or Immediate Past Vice President, as determined by a majority vote of the representatives of the member associations, shall serve a one-year term on the Governor's Advisory Committee on the selection of Regents.

#### SECTION 3 — SELECTION TIMELINE

For all future Alumni Regent selection processes, the UCMAA Executive Committee and Board of Directors shall uphold a set selection timeline and protocol, recognized as follows:

- May 2021 August 2021
  - Identify and confirm alumni for Selection Oversight Committee
  - Finalize remaining Committee Members & meeting schedule
  - Finalize meeting logistics (Webform, Communications/Marketing, etc.)
  - Discuss, draft, and approve Alumni Regent Application
  - Launch and collect Alumni Regent Applications (Minimum 1 Month)
- Fall 2021
  - Review Applicants in Rounds
    - September: Coordination + completion of Round 1 Application Review
    - October: Coordination + completion of Round 2 Vetting (with potential extension)
    - Remainder of semester: Coordination + completion of Round 3 Review
- Winter 2022
  - UCMAA Board Votes on UC Merced Alumni Regent Candidate (Jan/Feb)
  - Inform Candidate of Selection
- April 2022
  - Announce Alumni Regent
- May 2022
  - Alumni Regent-Designate will be asked to attend the Board or Regents meeting
- July 2022
  - Alumni Regent-Designate begins their 2-year term
  - Will serve as AAUC Treasurer

The Alumni Regent Application shall be discussed and drafted by the UCMAA Executive Committee with direct advising by the Division of External Relations and UC Merced administration. Upon completion of the application draft, the UCMAA Board of Directors shall conduct an approval vote, where affirmation by simple majority shall be required for application launch.

#### SECTION 4 - SELECTION OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

The Selection Oversight Committee shall consist of the following ten (10) members:

- UC Merced Vice Chancellor of External Relations, or chosen designate;
- UC Alumni Regent (Chair), with preference of former UC Merced Alumni Regent;
- UC Merced Director of Alumni Relations (Chair);
- UCMAA Board President (Chair);
- Two (2) Current UCMAA Board Members designated by the UCMAA Executive Committee;
- One (1) UCMAA member at large designated by the UCMAA Executive Committee; and
- Three (3) Current Student Representatives, with one (1) from each: ASUCM, SAA, GSA, or chosen designate(s)



UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED UPDATED: FEBRUARY 5, 2022

The UCMAA Board President, Director of Alumni Relations and UC Alumni Regent shall preside as tri-chairs of this Selection Oversight Committee and shall be tasked with convening and engaging members of the Selection Oversight Committee in the Candidate Review Protocol, as outlined below:

- Round 1: Selection Oversight Committee shall review applications and select Top 5
  - Top 5 shall be interviewed by the Selection Oversight Committee
  - Top 3 shall be brought forward to Round 2
- **Round 2:** Top 3 candidates shall be presented to Leadership cabinet and other constituent groups (i.e. Faculty Senate and Staff Assembly), where each group may provide their recommendation(s) to the Selection Oversight Committee
- **Round 3:** Selection Oversight Committee shall review submitted recommendations for final candidate selection and presentation to the UCMAA Board for confirmation vote of selected candidate

The Selection Oversight Committee shall conduct a candidate finalization vote to move a singular candidate forward for confirmation by the UCMAA Board of Directors. In the event that a simple majority result is not reached by vote of the Selection Oversight Committee for this singular candidate, the tri-chairs shall conduct a final executive vote for candidate finalization.

#### SECTION 5 - CONFIRMATION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The UCMAA Board of Directors shall conduct a confirmation vote of the selected candidate by the Selection Oversight Committee no later than the final UCMAA Board of Directors meeting prior to the established designation deadline. The Board of Directors shall reserve the right to hold deliberation prior to this vote and may be inclined to open a space for public comment on or with the selected candidate prior to confirmation. An affirmative vote resulting in confirmation by simple majority shall be required for the selected candidate to be confirmed.

In the event that an affirmative confirmation vote is not reached, the UCMAA Board of Directors shall compile and report justification(s) for review of the Selection Oversight Committee. The UCMAA Board of Directors shall entrust upon the Selection Oversight Committee to re-review the Top 3 Candidates inclusive of the justification(s) within this report. The UCMAA Board of Directors shall entrust upon the Selection Oversight Committee to finalize confirmation upon re-review by affirmative vote by simple majority. The UCMAA Board of Directors shall extra of Directors of Directors of Directors shall extra of Directors of Directors of Directors extra of Directors extra of Directors of Directors extra of Dir

#### SECTION 6 — ANNOUNCEMENT OF THE ALUMNI REGENT

In completion of confirmation and submission to the AAUC and UC Board of Regents, the UCMAA Board of Directors shall formally announce the Alumni Regent to the Association and UC Merced administration at the final Board of Directors meeting prior to the start of the Alumni Regent term.

#### SECTION 7 - REGENT VACANCY

In the event of vacancy or inability to complete the current Alumni Regent term, the UCMAA Board of Directors shall facilitate and complete the aforementioned selection protocol, as necessarily and rightfully truncated, prior to the subsequent Board of Regents meeting, within professional reason. In the event that the UCMAA Board of Directors does not select an Alumni Regent or a vacancy occurs, the UCMAA President shall serve as the Alumni Regent in interim until the selection process is completed.

## ··· ARTICLE VII — AMENDMENTS

#### SECTION 1 — ADOPTION OF AMENDMENTS

Any changes to or deletions of existing Bylaws, or creation of new Bylaws shall be approved by a two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of the Board of Directors.

#### SECTION 2 - NOTICE OF AMENDMENTS

The Alumni Relations Director shall post the entire verbatim approved amendments on the Association website and shall electronically mail and/or publish in any official Association publication an accurate summary of the proposed amendment(s) to the Members at least ten (10) business days following any Board meeting called for the purpose of amending the Bylaws.

## ···· ARTICLE VIII — CHAPTERS

#### SECTION 1 - CHAPTERS

The Executive Committee shall oversee and work with the Department of Alumni Relations to coordinate support for UCMAA Chapters to provide a medium through which the individual members of the Association and Ioyal friends of UC Merced can

contribute to the objectives and purposes of the Association. The Board shall aim to integrate the UCMAA





UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, MERCED UPDATED: FEBRUARY 5, 2022

Chapters into Board-led initiatives as such opportunities arise.

#### SECTION 2 - APPLICATION

Any group desiring to establish a UCMAA Chapter shall submit an application online to the Department of Alumni Relations for review by the Executive Committee. Upon receiving such application, the designated Executive Officer shall review the application and coordinate an organizational meeting with the applying parties to discuss the requirements of chartering. Newly-chartered Chapters and reactivated Chapters shall undergo one (1) year of probationary status from the date of the chartering. In meeting all requirements for chartering during this year, the Chapter shall granted full Active status, with annual renewal.

#### SECTION 3 - NAME

Each UCMAA Chapter shall be named with a unique region-specific, industry-specific, or community-specific descriptor following the format "UCMAA [Descriptor] Chapter.

#### SECTION 4 — MEMBERSHIP

Membership in a UCMAA Chapter shall be limited to Members and Honorary Members of the Association, however loyal friends who are not alumni of UC Merced may also be allowed to participate in Chapter activities.

#### SECTION 5 — CHAPTER TYPES AND STATUSES

Chapters shall be categorized as region-specific, focused on a particular geographic region; industry-specific, focused on a company or industry; or community-specific, focused on a community centered on specific demographic(s). Networks of Chapters may be recognized at the discretion of the Executive Committee.

Chapters in good standing that fulfill all requirements, as detailed in Section 6 below, shall maintain Active status. Chapters in their first year of charter (either new or reactivated) and Chapters who do not adhere to the guidelines, as detailed in Section 6 below, shall be given Probationary status, at the discretion of the Executive Committee and enforcement by the designated Executive Officer. Chapters who persistently fail to adhere to the requirements and guidelines shall be given Inactive status and charter shall be surrendered, as detailed in Section 9 below. Inactive charters may be reactivated by submission of a new application by new potential leadership.

#### SECTION 6 — GOVERNING GUIDELINES

All Chapters are subject to the terms, provisions, and restrictions of the Constitution and Bylaws of the Association. The Board Executive Committee shall establish and periodically review the Chapter Governing Guidelines. The Alumni Relations Director shall have the authority to enact and enforce any administrative procedures for all UCMAA Chapters after receiving feedback from the Chapter Leaders.

#### SECTION 7 — CHAPTER LEADERS

The Board Executive Committee shall solicit applications and/or nominations for leaders for all chartered chapters and select the leaders for the year—timeline and criteria to be established by the Committee. Chapter Leaders shall serve a term of one (1) year unless prior resignation or removal by the Committee. Chapter Leaders are to lead their respective Chapter by promoting alumni involvement and success, and engaging in activities that further the goals of the Association. Each Chapter Leader is required to follow the direction of the Alumni Relations Director or designee.

#### SECTION 8 - BOARD REVIEW & APPROVAL

The Board shall review new chapter applications with recommendation by the Alumni relations Director and by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote may charter a new UCMAA Chapter. Any member of the Board involved with the chapter application under approval shall be recused from the final vote and excluded from the tally, and shall thereafter by recused from all future votes of the Board relating to such Chapter when officially recognized and charted.

#### SECTION 9 — SURRENDER OF CHARTER

If interest in a chapter no longer exists for two consecutive years, the Board Executive Committee may dissolve said Chapter. The Board of Directors may reverse the dissolution of any Chapter by a simple majority vote.

The Board of Directors may revoke a Chapter's charter if any procedure set by the alumni Relations Director or provision of these Bylaws or Chapter Governing Guidelines are not complied with. The Chapter Leaders shall be provided an opportunity to present a response for the Chapter's actions or inactions prior to such revocation.